
 

 

DATE:  March 25, 2015 

TO:  Architectural Review Committee of the Historic Preservation 

Commission 

FROM:  Rich Sucré, Historic Preservation Technical Specialist, (415) 575‐9108 

REVIEWED BY:  Tim Frye, Preservation Coordinator, (415) 575‐6822 

RE:  Review and Comment: 3751‐3753 20th Street 

  Case No. 2014.0655A 

 

 

BACKGROUND 

On  January 21, 2015,  the Historic Preservation Commission  (HPC)  requested additional  review 

and  comment  before  the  Architectural  Review  Committee  (ARC)  regarding  the  proposal  for 

façade alterations, construction of a new three‐car garage, and a three‐story rear addition and roof 

deck  at  3751‐3753  20th  Street  within  the  Liberty‐Hill  Landmark  District,  which  is  listed  in 

Appendix F of Article 10 of the San Francisco Planning Code. 

 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

3751‐3753 20th STREET is a three‐story, two‐family residence designed in a simple Greek Revival 

architectural  style  located on  a  rectangular  lot  (measuring  approximately  25  ft x  114  ft) on  the 

south  side of 20th Street between Dolores and Guerrero Streets.   Constructed prior  to 1900,  the 

existing building features wood‐frame construction, wood siding, aluminum‐sash and wood‐sash 

windows,  a  gable  roof,  and  is  slightly  setback  from  the  street  edge. At  the  street,  the  subject 

property  features  a  brick  retaining  wall  and  a  set  of  concrete  steps.    Currently,  the  subject 

property does not have any off‐street parking. 

Per  Article  10  of  the  San  Francisco  Planning  Code,  3751‐3753  20th  Street  is  designated  as 

contributing resource to the Liberty‐Hill Landmark District. The project site is located within RH‐

2 (Residential, House, Two‐Family) Zoning District with a 40‐X Height and Bulk Limit.  

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The proposed project consists of rehabilitation of the two‐family residence, including: 

 Construction of a New Garage/Basement Level: The project would construct a new three‐car 

garage. The new garage opening would be approximately 9‐ft wide and would  feature 

painted, wood panel garage doors. The proposed curb cut would measure approximately 

10‐ft wide. As  part  of  the work  at  the  basement  level,  the  project would  replace  the 

existing foundation with a new concrete foundation.  

 Primary Façade Alterations: The project would remove the aluminum‐sash window on the 

third floor and insert a pair of new eight‐lite fixed windows to match the existing historic 
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windows  on  the  first  and  second  floors.  In  addition,  portions  of  the  existing  brick 

retaining wall would be removed to accommodate the new garage opening. 

 Inset Roof Windows: The project would construct a set of inset wood‐sash windows on the 

west and east facades of the existing gable roof.  

 Rear Yard Alterations: The project would remove portions of the grade at the rear yard to 

provide  exposure  to  the ground  floor  level. With  the grade work,  the  subject property 

appears as four‐stories tall. As part of the rear yard work, the project would construct a 

new set of stairs from the new grade up to the existing grade. 

 Construction of Rear Addition: At the rear, the project would remove the existing two‐story, 

non‐historic rear addition and construct a new three‐story horizontal addition with a roof 

deck  that would  extend  approximately  34‐ft  6‐in  from  the  existing  rear wall. This new 

horizontal  addition would  feature  large wood windows,  a  flat  roof,  and  tongue  and 

groove wood siding  (dimensioned at half  the height of  the existing wood siding on  the 

historic  property).  The  new  addition would  also  feature  a  roof  deck  at  the  third  and 

fourth  floor  levels.  These  roof  decks would  feature  a  simple metal  cable  rail  system 

around the roof deck perimeter. 

 West/East Façade Alterations: The project would add new window and door openings on 

the west  facade. The  rear  façade would  be  clad  in  a  smooth  stucco  finish,  and would 

feature wood‐sash casement windows. 

The proposed project would  increase  the square  footage of  the  two‐family residence  from 2,347 

square feet to 7,111 square feet. Original drawings date from November 4, 2014. 

The proposed project requires a variance from the Zoning Administrator to address the Planning 

Code requirements for rear yard (Planning Code Section 134). 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

On January 15, 2015, the Project was determined to be exempt from the California Environmental 

Quality Act  (“CEQA”)  as  a Class  32 Categorical  Exemption  under CEQA  as  described  in  the 

determination contained in the Planning Department files for this Project. 

 

JANUARY 21, 2015 HPC HEARING 

On  January  21,  2015,  the HPC  reviewed  the proposed project,  and  expressed  concern over  the 

following: 

 Reduction of gable window on upper level of the front façade;  

 Size, scale and design of new addition; 

 Courtyard (light court) in rear yard; and 

 Amount of excavation and potential archaeological issues. 

The HPC supports the revisions to the front façade and the insertion of a new three‐car garage. 
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STAFF ANALYSIS & RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Department seeks the advice of the ARC regarding the concerns expressed by the HPC, and 

the  subsequent  revisions  to  the project, as outlined  in  the  revised architectural drawings dated 

March 18, 2015.  

 

Since  the  January  21,  2015  HPC  Hearing,  the  Project  Sponsor  has  made  the  following 

modifications to the proposed project: 

 Removal of the rear sub‐grade light court; 

 Addition of a small window on the front façade to address dwelling unit exposure for the 

lower residential unit; 

 Regrading and terracing of the rear yard to step more gracefully from the back of the new 

addition; 

 Alignment  of  the  second‐story  rear  addition with  the  rear  of  the  adjacent  neighbor’s 

house (to address neighbor’s request); 

 Reduction of the height of the third‐story of the rear addition; 

 Revisions to the rear façade with less glazing and more wall surface; 

 Incorporation  of  a  1‐ft  wide  by  6‐in  deep  “hyphen”  connection  to  separate  existing 

residence and new addition on the west and east facades; 

 Revision to the gable window on the front façade from a two‐panel casement window to a 

single‐panel casement window (thus matching the single‐panel casement window on the 

second floor); 

 Addition of structural narrative (Sheet A07); and, 

 Update of the demolition calculations. 

 

The Department would like the ARC to consider the following information: 

 

Reduction of Gable Window on Upper Level of the Front Façade  

In  response  to  comments  from  the HPC,  the  Project  Sponsor  has modified  the  design  of  the 

window on  the gable on  the  top  floor of  the  front  façade. This window has been  revised  to  a 

single‐panel, eight‐lite, wood‐sash window, which would match the single panel window on the 

second floor. 

Recommendation: 

Department  staff  supports  the  proposed  revisions  to  the  gable,  and  recommends  no 

further revisions. 

 

Size, Scale and Design of the New Addition 

In  response  to  comments  from  the HPC  and  surrounding  neighbors,  the  Project  Sponsor  has 

modified the size and scale of the proposed three‐story rear horizontal addition. Specifically, the 

Project Sponsor has reduced the length of this addition on the second floor by approximately 2‐ft 
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to match  the  adjacent  neighbor  to  the  north.  In  addition,  the Project  Sponsor  has  reduced  the 

overall height of the rear vertical addition by approximately 1‐ft 3‐in. The Project Sponsor has also 

reduced the amount of glazing on the rear façade, and also increased the amount of stained wood 

tongue and groove wood siding. 

Recommendation: 

Department staff supports the proposed revisions to the rear addition, and recommends 

no further revisions. As noted  in the original case report, the new three‐story horizontal 

addition is clearly differentiated from the historic mass of the original residence, as noted 

by the roofline, the change in siding, and the newly‐added hyphen on the west and east 

facades.   This hyphen is accentuated by the addition of trim board, which highlights the 

distinction between the historic residence and the new addition. The new addition has a 

flat  roof, while  the  existing historic  residence  features  a gable  roof. The new  additions 

would be constructed on top of an existing non‐historic addition currently located at the 

rear of the existing residence. The new addition  is considered to be compatible with the 

subject property’s overall historic character, since the new work is occurring on a rear and 

non‐visible  façade,  the  new  wood  siding  is  similar  in  material  and  design  to  the 

property’s historic wood siding (evident on the primary facades), and the mass of the new 

addition is differential to the historic mass of the original residence. Although the overall 

scale  of  the  project  appears  large  due  to  the  extent  of  the  excavation,  the Department 

considers  the above grade portion of  the new addition  to be consistent and compatible 

with the residence and surrounding district, since the new addition is differentiated to the 

mass of the existing residence and is smaller in scale relative to the existing building. 

 

Courtyard (Light Court) in Rear Yard/New Exterior Window 

In response to comments from the HPC, the Project Sponsor has removed the two‐story, rear yard 

light  court, which would  have  required  excavation  of  21‐ft  10‐in.  In  response,  the  Project  has 

modified  the  rear  landscaping  to  include  a  series of  rear yard  terraces  and  retaining walls. To 

provide additional light to the lower residential unit, the project includes a skylight/light well and 

a new exterior window on the front facade. As proposed, the new exterior window appears out of 

scale with the other windows on the front façade. 

Recommendation: 

Department staff supports the proposed revisions to the rear light court, and recommends 

no further revisions. The Department seeks the input of the HPC on the design, size and 

scale of the new exterior window. 

 

Amount of Excavation and Potential Archaeological Issues 

The proposed project underwent archaeological review as part of  the environmental review. At 

the  request of  the HPC,  the Department has provided  additional  information on  the proposed 

excavation from the Department’s staff archaeologist (See Attached). 
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REQUESTED ACTION 

Specifically, the Department seeks comments on: 

 Reduction of gable window on upper level of the front façade;  

 Size, scale and design of new addition; and, 

 Courtyard (light court) in rear yard/new exterior window. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 Revised Proposed Project Architectural Drawings by Matarozzi Pelsinger Design + Build 

(March 18, 2015); and, 

 Original Architectural Drawings by Matarozzi Pelsinger Design + Building (November 4, 

2014). 
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Original Proposal – 3751‐3753 20th Street 

(dated November 4, 2014) 




















































